

833

## NAVY DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING LIBRARY

# THE DAVID W. TAYLOR MODEL BASIN

WASHINGTON 7, D.C.

# GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS

by V.G. Szebehely, Dr. Eng.





November 1952

Report 833

NS 715-084



### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ABSTRACT	1
INTRODUCTION	1
ANALYSIS OF THE GENERALIZED STROUHAL NUMBER	3
Range of Unsteadiness	3
Unit of Unsteadiness and Accelerationless Flows	4
Special Unsteadiness Distributions	7
EVALUATION OF THE MEASURE OF UNSTEADINESS FOR CERTAIN UNSTEADY FLOWS OF SPECIAL INTEREST	9
d'ALEMBERT Flow	9
Unsteady Jet	11
Dissipation of Vorticity	13
Trkal's and Hamel's Solution	16
Pseudo Flows	17
Linearized Flow	18
Inertia Method for Ship Resistance Measurement	19
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE RESEARCH	20
CONCLUSIONS	20
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	21
REFERENCES	21

## NOTATION

A	Constant
$\bar{a}(a_x, a_y, a_z)$	Acceleration vector $(a_i)$
$\overline{a}_{c}$	Convective acceleration
$\overline{a}_{l}$	Local acceleration
В	Constant
b()	Arbitrary functions
C	Constant
с	Drag coefficient
F	Wetted area
F()	Arbitrary function
f()	Arbitrary function
G( )	Arbitrary function
g()	Arbitrary function
H( )	Arbitrary function
K	Constant
k	Constant
k <sub>x</sub>	Added mass coefficient in the x-direction
L	Characteristic body dimension
m	Mass
o subsc <b>r</b> ipt	Boundary or initial value $(x_0, t_0)$
Р	Body force per unit volume
$\overline{P}()$	Arbitrary vector function
p	Pressure
R()	Arbitrary function
<i>t</i>	Radial coordinate
$\overline{r}(x,y,z)$	Position vector $(x_i)$
S	Generalized Strouhal number
Τ()	Arbitrary function
t	Time
U	Free stream velocity

u <sub>r</sub>	Radial velocity component
$u_{ heta}$	Angular velocity component
$\overline{v}(u,v,w)$	Velocity vector $(v_i)$
$\overline{w}$	Vorticity vector
x,y,z subscript	Space derivatives $\left(u_x = \frac{\partial u}{\partial x}\right)$
α	Constant
ζ	Vorticity
θ	Angular coordinate
λ	Second coefficient of viscosity
μ	Ordinary coefficient of viscosity
ν	Kinematic viscosity = $\frac{\mu}{\rho}$
ρ	Density
$\phi$	Potential function
ψ	Stream function
ω	Angular velocity
$\frac{\partial v_{i}}{\partial x_{j}}$	Cartesian velocity derivative tensor $(v_{i,j})$
Dot	Time derivative $\left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = \dot{u}\right)$

#### GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS

by

V.G. Szebehely, Dr. Eng.

#### ABSTRACT

This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time-dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasizing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier-Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and convective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \neq \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

#### INTRODUCTION

The dimensionless parameter governing oscillation tests in hydrodynamics is the well-known Strouhal number or dimensionless frequency.<sup>1</sup> For nonoscillatory motions, a Fourier analysis furnishes the spectrum with which the problem can be analyzed.<sup>2</sup> The main problem of this report is to find a quantitative measure of unsteadiness which is applicable to any fluid motion and which therefore includes oscillation as a special case. Apart from any possible immediate application (maneuvering of bodies immersed in a fluid), the need of a generalized measure of unsteadiness seems to be justified since it forms a basis for systematic study of time-dependent fluid motions.

The acceleration vector  $\overline{a}$  consists of two parts, the local  $\overline{a}_l$  and the convective  $\overline{a}_c$  accelerations. The local acceleration shows the time dependence of the velocity vector;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>References are listed on page 21.

the convective part is connected with the space dependence of velocity field. The total acceleration is often introduced as the "substantial derivative" of the velocity. This concept seems to be unnecessary since, considering the velocity a function of the time and space, the acceleration is defined as the total derivative of the velocity with respect to the time. The  $i^{th}$  component of the acceleration is

$$a_i = \frac{dv_i\left(x_1, x_2, x_3; t\right)}{dt}$$

and the  $i^{th}$  component of the velocity is

$$v_i = \frac{dx_i}{dt}$$

The acceleration in expanded form becomes

$$a_i = \frac{\partial v_i}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial v_i}{\partial x_j} v_j^*$$

The  $\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial t}$  term is the local acceleration; the  $\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial x_j} v_j$  part is called the convective part. For time-independent flows, the local acceleration is zero. For uniform (space-independent) flows, the convective part is zero. Several other expressions exist for the acceleration vector, for instance in vector form:

$$\overline{a} = \dot{\overline{v}} + \frac{1}{2} \operatorname{grad} \overline{v}^2 - \overline{v} \times \operatorname{curl} \overline{v}$$

or in scalar form:

$$a_x = \dot{u} + uu_x + vu_y + wu_z$$
$$a_y = \dot{v} + uv_x + vv_y + wv_z$$
$$a_z = \dot{w} + uw_x + vw_y + ww_z$$

The generally applicable measure of unsteadiness proposed in this report is the dimensionless ratio of the magnitudes of the local and convective accelerations:

$$S = \frac{|\overline{v}|}{\left|\frac{1}{2} \operatorname{grad} \overline{v}^2 - \overline{v} \times \operatorname{curl} \overline{v}\right|}$$

$$v_{i,j} v_j = \sum_{j=1}^{3} v_{i,j} v_j$$

<sup>&</sup>quot;Here  $\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial x_j} = v_i$ , j represents the Cartesian velocity derivative tensor. In computing the  $v_i$ , j  $v_j$  term, the summation convention is used, i.e.,

$$S = \frac{\sqrt{\dot{v}_i \, \dot{v}_i}}{\sqrt{v_{j, k} \, v_{j, l} \, v_k \, v_l}}$$

The quantity S will also be referred to as the generalized Strouhal number since it can be shown that it reduces to the conventional Strouhal number for linearized oscillatory flows.

In addition to an analysis of this measure of unsteadiness, two fundamental problems might be indicated at this point:

1. "Direct" problems refer to those in which the time and space dependence of the measure of unsteadiness is prescribed and inquiry is made about flows which satisfy this given unsteadiness.

2. Indirect or "inverse" problems are those in which given flows are analyzed and the generalized Strouhal numbers are computed.

#### ANALYSIS OF THE GENERALIZED STROUHAL NUMBER

#### RANGE OF UNSTEADINESS

A few definitions will be given before investigating the limiting values of the measure.

1. <u>Steady flow is defined by the property that the velocity at every point in the flow,</u> at any time, is independent of the time, i.e.,

$$\frac{\partial \overline{v}}{\partial t} = 0$$

2. Unsteady flow has the property that at some point(s), at certain time(s), the velocity depends on the time, i.e.,

$$\frac{\partial \, \overline{v}}{\partial t} \neq 0$$

3. Uniform flow is characterized by the property that the velocity at any time is the same at all points in the fluid, i.e.,

$$\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial x_j} = 0$$

4. <u>Nonuniform flow</u> is associated with the property that at some point(s), at certain time(s), the velocity gradient is different from zero, i.e.,

$$\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial x_j} \neq 0$$

There are four combinations of the possible space and time dependencies. It will be shown presently that the generalized Strouhal number is well defined in three cases; the fourth is of no interest.

or

- 1. For steady nonuniform flow, S = 0,
- 2. For unsteady uniform flow,  $S = \infty$ ,
- 3. For unsteady nonuniform flow,  $0 < S < \infty$
- 4. For steady uniform flow, S is not defined; this flow, however, is of no interest.

Generally the measure of unsteadiness depends on the time and on the position of the point at which the unsteadiness is computed i.e.,

$$S = S(\bar{r}, t)$$

There is no reason to expect a constant unsteadiness. Two flows might be equally unsteady at one time and at a certain point in the flow, and they might show quite different unsteadiness at different times and/or at different points. There are some important flow problems for which the measure of unsteadiness takes its limiting values. For instance, in the case of a hydrodynamic impact phenomenon,  $\dot{\bar{v}}$  is very large and  $\bar{v}^2 \approx 0$ . This results in  $S \rightarrow \infty$ .\*

#### UNIT OF UNSTEADINESS AND ACCELERATIONLESS FLOWS

An accelerationless flow possesses the property of having zero acceleration at any time at any point in the flow, i.e.,

$$\bar{a} = \bar{a}_c + \bar{a}_l = 0$$

Steady uniform flows satisfy this condition, but there are much more important solutions. From the above definition of accelerationless flow it follows that

$$|\bar{a}_c| = |\bar{a}_l|$$

and so

$$S = \frac{|\bar{a}_l|}{|\bar{a}_c|} = 1$$

An accelerationless flow, therefore, has unit unsteadiness. It might be remarked that while accelerationless flows result in S = 1, these are not the only unsteady flows with this property. For instance, flows with acceleration and satisfying the condition

$$\overline{a}_l = \overline{a}_c = \frac{\overline{a}}{2}$$

also have unit unsteadiness. This ambiguity can be eliminated by introducing quantities which are ratios of local and convective acceleration components and which take signs into consideration. This way, however, the simplicity and the usefulness of the measure is reduced. Investigations presented elsewhere<sup>3</sup> showed little advantage in introducing the quantities (elements of the Strouhal matrix) mentioned above.

<sup>\*</sup>An impact is a "very unsteady" phenomenon.

Geometrically, unit unsteadiness means that the total, the local, and the convective accelerations form an isosceles triangle (Figure 1).

This geometrical representation of unit unsteadiness is general. The  $\alpha = 0$  case corresponds to accelerationless flow  $(\bar{a}_c = -\bar{a}_l)$ ; the  $\alpha = \pi$  case is equivalent to  $\bar{a}_c = \bar{a}_l = \frac{\bar{a}}{2}$ 

Despite the very special importance of accelerationless flows, very little is known about them.\* For viscous fluids, the inertia forces (acceleration) are in equilibrium with the outside (or body) forces plus the pressure gradient plus the viscous forces. According to the Navier-Poisson-Duhem<sup>7</sup> equation:

$$\rho a_i = -p_{,i} + P_i + (\lambda + \mu) v_{j,ji} + \mu v_{i,jj}$$

For incompressible viscous fluids

$$\rho a_i = -p_{,i} + P_i + \mu v_{i,jj}$$

In accelerationless flows, therefore, the outside forces, the pressure gradient, and the shear stresses are in equilibrium. If the fluid is ideal and the body forces are neglected, the condition for accelerationless flow is space-independent pressure.\*\*

At this point it seems advantageous to repeat that only important accelerationless flows are under consideration here, i.e., flows for which  $\overline{a}_c$  and  $\overline{a}_l$  are different from zero and  $\overline{a}_c = -\overline{a}_l$ . The velocity of a one-dimensional accelerationless flow [u = u(x)]satisfies the differential equation

$$\dot{u} + u u_r = 0$$

The momentum equation for this case is

$$-p_x + (\lambda + 2\mu) u_{xx} = 0$$

or

$$p = (\lambda + 2\mu) u_{r} + f(t)$$

The continuity equation for a one-dimensional flow is

$$\dot{\rho} + u\rho_x + u_x\rho = 0$$

For barotropic fluid flow, the pressure density relation is represented by the relation

$$\boldsymbol{\rho} = R(\boldsymbol{p})$$

\*A study of the literature revealed a few sentences in Neményi's paper,<sup>4</sup> a study by Merlin<sup>5</sup> using the Lagrangean method, some remarks by Hopf.,<sup>6</sup> etc. In what follows, only some interesting and characteristic results will be mentioned. A complete study of accelerationless flows is forthcoming.

5



At the time this report went to the printer, the writer's attention was called to B. Caldonazzo's paper, "On Free Motion of a Continuous Medium," Ann. Mat. pura appl., 1947, Ser. 4, Vol. 26, pp 43-55.

<sup>\*\*</sup>The pressure is not constant in time.

Accelerationless flow of an incompressible fluid in one dimension is trivial since, for this case, the continuity equation gives  $u_x = 0$  or u = u(t). Now, from the equation of zero acceleration, it follows that if  $u_x = 0$ ,  $\dot{u} = 0$ , then u = constant. The pressure will depend only on time

$$p = f(t)$$

and no effect of viscosity is observed.

For compressible nonviscous fluids

$$u_x \neq 0$$

Again the pressure depends only on the time p = f(t).

Because of the  $\rho = R(p)$  relation, the density depends on time alone,

$$\rho = R[f(t)] = g(t)$$
 and  $\rho_x = 0$ 

From the continuity equation

$$u_x = \frac{-\dot{\rho}}{\rho} = \frac{-\dot{g}(t)}{g(t)} = G(t)$$

or

$$u = G(t) x + F(t)$$

and

$$\rho = \rho_0 e^{-\int_t^t G(t) dt}$$

The condition for zero acceleration is:

$$\dot{u} + u u_x = x (\dot{G} + G^2) + \dot{F} + GF = 0$$

Therefore, the two differential equations for G(t) and F(t) are:

$$\dot{G} + G^2 = 0 \quad \text{and} \quad \dot{F} + GF = 0$$

From these,

$$G = \frac{1}{t + t_0}$$
$$F = \frac{x_0}{t + t_0}$$

and so the velocity is

$$u=\frac{x+x_0}{t+t_0}$$

The density becomes

$$\rho = \frac{2t_0 \rho_0}{t+t_0}$$

and the pressure is

$$p = R^{-1}(\rho)$$

Finally for compressible viscous fluids, the pressure is

$$p = (\lambda + 2 \mu) u_r + f(t)$$

and the density

$$\rho = R \left[ \left( \lambda + 2 \mu \right) u_r + f(t) \right]$$

Substituting this in the continuity equation and also satisfying the condition for zero acceleration results in the velocity as a function of time and position.

The general solution of the differential equation  $\dot{u} + uu_x = 0$  is obtained by the method of characteristics:

$$x = ut + f(u)$$

or

$$u = g \left( x - u t \right)$$

Choosing  $f(u) = t_0 u - x_0$ , the solution is  $u = \frac{x + x_0}{t + t_0}$ , as found previously.\* A much more complex flow is obtained if

$$f(u) = \frac{t_0^2}{x_0} u^2$$

The velocity becomes multivalued, and two flows are possible:

$$u = -\frac{t x_0}{2 t_0^2} + \sqrt{\left(\frac{t x_0}{2 t_0^2}\right)^2 + \frac{x x_0}{t_0^2}} \qquad \qquad u = -\frac{t x_0}{2 t_0^2} - \sqrt{\left(\frac{t x_0}{2 t_0^2}\right)^2 + \frac{x x_0}{t_0^2}}$$

#### SPECIAL UNSTEADINESS DISTRIBUTIONS

Generally the measure of unsteadiness depends on the position and time, i.e.,

$$S = S(\bar{r}, t)$$

A d'Alembert type of unsteadiness is defined by

$$S\left(\bar{r},t\right)=f\left(\bar{r}\right)g\left(t\right)$$

For one-dimensional flow, this assumption results in the following differential equation:

$$w_i = a_{ij}(t) x_j$$

<sup>\*</sup>It is not the purpose of this report to discuss the problem of accelerationless flows. The above short analysis was presented to show that there are flows with unit unsteadiness or zero acceleration which are not trivial. In this connection, it might be mentioned that a generalization of the above ideas for three-dimensional flows, considering a velocity distribution of the type

will be presented in the near future.

$$\frac{|\dot{u}|}{|uu_x|} = f(x) g(t)$$

For accelerationless flow,  $\dot{u} + u u_x = 0$ , and therefore S = 1. Consider now  $\xi$  and  $\tau$ , new variables which are related to x and t by the following equations:

$$\xi = \int \frac{dx}{f(x)}$$

and

$$au = \int g(t) dt$$

A simple calculation shows that the velocity distribution which has d'Alembert-type unsteadiness is given as before by

$$u = G\left(\xi - u\,\tau\right)$$

or

$$u = G\left[\int \frac{dx}{f(x)} - u \int g(t) dt\right]$$

or

$$\int \frac{dx}{f(x)} = u \int g(t) dt + F(u)$$

Here G and F are arbitrary functions; f and g are given. Choosing, for instance, F(u) = u, the velocity is

$$u = \frac{\int \frac{dx}{f(x)}}{1 + \int g(t) dt}$$

If q(t) = 1, f(x) = 1,

$$u = \frac{x + x_0}{t + t_0}$$

as previously found. The simplest type of variable unsteadiness is

$$S(x,t) = xt$$

for which case

$$u = \frac{\ln\left(\frac{x}{x_0}\right)^2}{t^2 - t_0^2}$$

The velocity is not generally separable, but is separable only if F(u) = constant, or if F(u) = constant u.

For the general case [S = S(x, t)] consider the differential equation:

$$\dot{u} + S(x, t) u u_x = 0$$

The solution can be obtained again by the method of characteristics,

$$u = H\left[x - u\int S(x, t) dt\right]$$

This solution, of course, reduces to the previously discussed cases if the proper assumptions are made.

#### EVALUATION OF THE MEASURE OF UNSTEADINESS FOR CERTAIN UNSTEADY FLOWS OF SPECIAL INTEREST

#### d'ALEMBERT FLOW

Separable or d'Alembert flows are defined by the following velocity distribution:

$$\bar{v}(\bar{r},t) = T(t) \,\bar{u}(\bar{r})$$

The generalized Strouhal number becomes

$$S = \left| \frac{\dot{T}}{T^2} f\left( \overline{r} \right) \right|$$

where

$$f(\bar{r}) = \frac{|\bar{u}|}{\left|\frac{1}{2} \operatorname{grad} \bar{u}^2 - \bar{u} \times \operatorname{curl} \bar{u}\right|}$$

The unsteadiness of a separable flow is also separable. The reverse is not true, however, since d'Alembert-type unsteadiness might come from a nonseparable flow, as shown previously.

The measure of unsteadiness is time-independent if, with C = constant,

$$\frac{dT}{dt} = CT^2$$

from which

$$T = \frac{A}{1 - ACt}$$

where A is a constant of integration and, in fact, A = T(0). If C < 0 and A > 0, T varies from A to zero as  $0 \rightarrow t \rightarrow \infty$ . It is an important property of the d'Alembert flows that the streamlines are pathlines and the streamline pattern is steady. The unsteadiness is constant in time for d'Alembert flows if the velocity is inversely proportional to a linear function of the time. For oscillatory d'Alembert flows, let

$$T(t) = A \sin \omega t + B = A (\sin \omega t + \alpha)$$

where A and B are positive constants and  $\alpha$  is equal to B/A. Considering a fixed point in space, if  $\alpha = 1$ , the function T(t) and, therefore, the velocity are zero at  $t = \frac{3\pi}{2\omega} + \frac{2n\pi}{\omega}$ , with n = 0, 1, 2... If  $\alpha > 1$ , then T(t) > 0 and the velocity is unidirectional. If  $0 < \alpha < 1$ , the direction of the velocity alternates. For large values of  $\alpha$ , i.e.,  $\alpha \gg 1$ , the time dependence of the velocity is represented by a large constant plus a small oscillatory part (Figure 2).

The velocity has its maxima at

$$t_1 = \frac{\pi}{2\omega} + \frac{2n\pi}{\omega}, \quad n = 0, 1, 2...$$



Figure 2 - Oscillatory d'Alembert Flow,  $\alpha = 10$  and  $\alpha = 1$ 

and its minima at

$$t_2 = \frac{3\pi}{2\omega} + \frac{2n\pi}{\omega}, \quad n = 0, 1, 2...$$

The factor governing the time variation of the measure is

$$F(t) = \frac{\dot{T}}{T^2} = \frac{\omega}{A} \frac{\cos \omega t}{(\alpha + \sin \omega t)^2}$$

If  $\alpha \neq 1$ , the unsteadiness is zero at  $t_1$  and  $t_2$ , i.e., when the velocity is maximum or minimum. If  $\alpha = 1$ , the unsteadiness is zero when the velocity is maximum and is infinite for zero velocity (= minimum veloc-ity).

For  $\alpha \gg 1$ ,

$$F(t) \cong \frac{\omega}{A \alpha^2} \cos \omega t$$

the maximum unsteadiness lags behind the minimum velocity by  $\pi/2\omega$  and the minimum unsteadiness leads the minimum velocity by  $\pi/2\omega$ . This lag and lead approach zero as  $\alpha \rightarrow 1$ .

Figure 2 shows the lag for the case  $\alpha = 10$  to be  $0.870 \frac{\pi}{2\omega}$  and Figure 3 shows the lag to be  $0.44 \frac{\pi}{2\omega}$  for  $\alpha = 2$ .

In fact, the occurrence of the extreme values of unsteadiness satisfy the equation

$$\sin \omega t = \frac{\alpha}{2} - \sqrt{\left(\frac{\alpha}{2}\right)^2 + 2}$$

The maximum and minimum unsteadiness are symmetrical with respect to the minimum velocity point.

For d'Alembert flows with exponential decay, the time dependence of the velocity is given by

$$T(t) = A e^{-K^2 t}$$

and the factor governing the unsteadiness is

$$F(t) = \frac{\dot{T}}{T^{2}} = -\frac{K^{2}}{A} e^{K^{2}t}$$

The unsteadiness increases exponentially in d'Alembert flows with exponential decay.



Figure 3 - Oscillatory d'Alembert Flow,  $\alpha = 2$ 

#### UNSTEADY JET

An example is furnished by a special potential flow of the d'Alembert type,

$$\phi = \frac{b(t)}{2} (x^2 + y^2 - 2z^2)$$

which represents a jet impinging against a flat plate (Figure 4).

The velocity components are

$$u = b(t)x;$$
  $v = b(t)y;$   $w = -2b(t)z$ 

and the acceleration components

$$a_x = \dot{b}x + b^2x;$$
  $a_y = \dot{b}y + b^2y;$   $a_z = -2\dot{b}z + 4b^2z$ 

The Strouhal number is

$$S = \frac{|\dot{b}|}{b^2} \sqrt{\frac{x^2 + y^2 + 4z^2}{x^2 + y^2 + 16z^2}}$$

which is constant in time, if  $\frac{db}{dt} = Cb^2$ , where C is a dimensionless constant. The solution is again

$$b(t) = \frac{A}{1 - ACt}$$

٤,

where A = b(0). The time-independent Strouhal number is then



$$S = |C| \sqrt{\frac{x^2 + y^2 + 4z^2}{x^2 + y^2 + 16z^2}}$$

The Strouhal number is space independent on the z = 0 plane (where w = 0 and which is, therefore, the plane of impact) and on the z axis (where w = v = 0 and which is the center line of the jet). At any given time, the above measure has its maximum in the plane of impact ( $z = 0, x \neq 0, y \neq 0$ ),

$$S_{\max} = \frac{|\dot{b}|}{b^2}$$

and its minimum on the z axis  $(x = y = 0, z \neq 0)$ ,

$$S_{\min} = \frac{1}{2} S_{\max}$$

Figure 4 - Three-Dimensional Jet and Flat Plate

Returning to the case where the measure

is time independent, it is seen that if b(0) = A is positive, w < 0 for z > 0 and the flow approaches the plate. The variation of b(t) with time is shown in Figure 5 for C > 0 and C < 0. The C = 0 case is equivalent to zero Strouhal number and to b(t) = A, i.e., to steady flow conditions. The case C > 0 gives increasing velocity from t = 0 to  $t \rightarrow 1/AC$ . As the time approaches 1/AC, the velocity  $\rightarrow \infty$ . The case C < 0 represents decreasing velocity from t = 0 to  $t \rightarrow \infty$ . If the investigation is extended only to the range  $0 \leq t$  and no infinite velocity is allowed, then C < 0. For this case, now, if  $|C_1| > |C_2|$ , then the flow corresponding to  $C_1$  will approach zero velocity quicker than the flow corresponding to  $C_2$ .

The Strouhal number is equal to |C| on the (x, y) plane. In the problem under consideration, therefore, it may be concluded that large values of the Strouhal scalar are associated with large changes in velocity. As a matter of fact, a negative C is associated with a



Figure 5 - Time Dependence of Jet with Constant Unsteadiness

velocity decrease and a positive C with a velocity increase, but the latter case, as is seen in Figure 5, involves infinite velocity.

#### DISSIPATION OF VORTICITY

It was shown by Kampéde Fériet<sup>9</sup> that there are only four possible two-dimensional flows of incompressible viscous fluids for which the streamlines are isocurls, i.e., the vorticity is constant along streamlines. These are flows for which the vorticity is time and space independent, parallel flows, and G.I. Taylor's two solutions, which are to be discussed in detail. Flows with constant vorticity are not considered interesting. For parallel flows, the incompressibility condition always results in zero convective acceleration. The third and fourth flows given by Taylor are those in which the streamlines are concentric circles or in which the eddies form cells. The stream function for the former case is<sup>10</sup>

$$\psi = \frac{A}{t} e^{-\frac{r^2}{4vt}}$$

The tangential velocity is

$$u_{\theta} = -\frac{\partial \psi}{\partial r} = \frac{Ar}{2\nu t^2} e^{-\frac{r^2}{4\nu t}}$$

and the vorticity is

$$\zeta = -\frac{\partial^2 \psi}{\partial r^2} - \frac{1}{r} \frac{\partial \psi}{\partial r} = \frac{A}{\nu t^2} \left(1 - \frac{r^2}{4 \nu t}\right) e^{-\frac{r^2}{4 \nu t}}$$

The local and convective accelerations in the tangential and radial directions are:

$$(a_{\theta})_{l} = \dot{u}_{\theta} = -\frac{Ar}{2\nu t^{3}} \left(2 - \frac{r^{2}}{4\nu t}\right) e^{-\frac{r^{2}}{4\nu t}}$$

$$(a_{\theta})_{c} = 0$$

$$(a_{r})_{l} = 0$$

$$(a_{r})_{c} = -\frac{1}{r} (u_{\theta})^{2} = -\frac{A^{2}r}{4\nu^{2}t^{4}} e^{-\frac{r^{2}}{2\nu t}}$$

With these values,

$$S = \left|\frac{2\nu t}{A} \left(2 - \frac{r^2}{4\nu t}\right)\right| e^{\frac{r^2}{4\nu t}}$$

This is zero on a circle of radius

$$r_1 = \sqrt{8 \nu t}$$

The radius of zero unsteadiness  $(r_1)$  increases with time, and it is always larger than the radius of maximum velocity  $(r_2)$ ,

$$r_2 = \sqrt{2 \nu t}$$



Figure 6 - Unsteadiness of a Circular Eddy

At the origin (r = 0), for A > 0, t > 0,

$$S = \frac{4 \nu t}{A}$$

i.e., the unsteadiness increases linearly with time. On the radius of maximum velocity

$$S = \frac{3\sqrt{e} vt}{A}$$

Inside the circle of zero unsteadiness, the unsteadiness is greatest at

$$r_3 = \sqrt{4 \nu t}$$

This maximum unsteadiness is

$$S_{\max} = \frac{2 e \nu}{A} t$$

The maximum unsteadiness corresponds to zero vorticity and maximum dissipation per unit



Figure 7 - Characteristics of a Circular Eddy

volume; see Figures 6 and 7.

Taylor's<sup>11</sup> second solution also represents an example of separable flows. This solution is more general than the previous one since both velocity components are different from zero. The stream function is

$$\psi = F(x, y) e^{-2\nu a^2 t}$$

or for a special case

$$\psi = C \cos \alpha x \cos \alpha y e^{-2 v \alpha^2 t}$$

where

$$\alpha = \frac{\pi}{d}$$

Trivial streamlines are given by  $x = \pm \frac{2n+1}{2}d$  and  $y = \pm \frac{2n+1}{2}d$  (Figure 8). The sign of C determines the direction of rotation. The velocity components are

$$u = -\frac{\partial \psi}{\partial y} = C \alpha \cos \alpha x \sin \alpha y e^{-2 \nu \alpha^2 t}$$

 $v = \frac{\partial \psi}{\partial x} = -C\alpha \sin \alpha x \cos \alpha y \ e^{-2\nu \alpha^2 t}$ 

The vorticity is

$$\zeta = \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} - \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} = \Delta \psi = -2 \alpha^2 \psi$$

so the streamlines are isocurls.

The velocity and the vorticity approach zero as  $t \rightarrow \infty$ ; the motion dies out quickly for large values of  $\nu$ . On the other hand, the unsteadiness of the flow increases with time. The local and convective accelerations are both decreasing but the convective part dies out faster than the local component and in this way the ratio, which represents the unsteadiness, is increasing.

In fact, the Strouhal scalar is, with  $C \rightarrow 0$ ,

$$S = \frac{2\nu e^{2\nu\alpha^2 t}}{C} \sqrt{\frac{\cos^2 \alpha x \sin^2 \alpha y + \sin^2 \alpha x \cos^2 \alpha y}{\cos^2 \alpha x \sin^2 \alpha x + \sin^2 \alpha y \cos^2 \alpha y}}$$
  
Now  $S \Rightarrow \frac{2\nu e^{2\nu\alpha^2 t}}{C}$  at the origin. For  $y = \pm x$ ,  
 $S = \frac{2\nu e^{2\nu\alpha^2 t}}{C}$ 

At x = 0,  $y = \pm \frac{d}{2}$  and at y = 0,  $x = \pm d$ ,  $S \rightarrow \infty$ . Therefore, it is concluded that the unsteadiness is largest at points where the velocity is the largest (points A, B, C, and D).

#### TRKAL'S AND HAMEL'S SOLUTION

Trkal's<sup>12</sup> generalization of Taylor's solution is

$$\overline{v} = \overline{u} (x, y, z) e^{-\nu k^2 t}$$

The Navier-Poisson-Duhem equation is

$$o\left(\frac{\partial v_i}{\partial t} + v_{i,j} v_j\right) = -p_{,i} + (\lambda + \mu) v_{j,j\iota} + \mu v_{i,jj} + P_i$$

Taking the curl of this equation, and assuming incompressible fluid and conservative external force, one obtains in vector form

$$curl\ \overline{v} - curl\ (\overline{v} \times curl\ \overline{v}) = v\Delta\ curl\ \overline{v}$$

As suming a Beltrami flow ( $\bar{v} \times curl \ \bar{v} = 0$ ), and substituting the Trkal solution, it is found that

$$-k^2 \,\overline{u} = \Delta \,\overline{u}$$

which shows the analogy between Taylor's  $\psi$  and Trkal's  $\overline{u}$ .

16

and

The measure of unsteadiness is time dependent and shows the same peculiar behavior as was discussed in connection with the decay of vorticity. The streamline pattern is constant in time. The unsteadiness increases as  $t \to \infty$  and  $|\overline{v}| \to 0$ .

Hamel's<sup>13</sup> solution gives an interesting example for two-dimensional spiral flow viscous incompressible fluid. The stream function is given by

$$\psi = C\theta + e^{nt}f_n(r)$$

where C is a constant and  $f_n(r)$  is chosen to satisfy the kinematic compatibility equation.

The velocity components are



Figure 8 - Cells of Vorticity

$$u_{\theta} = -e^{nt} f_n'(r)$$

and

$$u_r = \frac{C}{r}$$

The tangential velocity is time dependent and the radial velocity is time independent. As t becomes large, the Strouhal number S becomes time independent, differently, however, with positive or negative n. For if n < 0, S becomes 0 as time increases without bound, but if n > 0, S becomes a function of r only which is in general not zero.

If the stream function is of the form

$$\psi = A(t) B(r, \theta)$$

then of course A(t) must satisfy the differential equation

$$\frac{d A(t)}{dt} = constant A^{2}(t)$$

(as was shown before) in order to obtain time-independent unsteadiness.

#### **PSEUDO FLOWS**

A pseudo plane flow of the first kind is defined by the velocity distribution<sup>14</sup>

$$u = f(x, y, z; t),$$
  $v = g(x, y, z; t),$   $w = 0$ 

i.e., the trajectories are in planes parallel with the (x, y) plane. The local acceleration components are given by  $\dot{f}$ ,  $\dot{g}$ , and 0. The convective acceleration has the components

$$ff_x + gf_y$$
,  $fg_x + gg_y$  and 0.

Therefore, the acceleration takes place in planes parallel to the (x, y) plane.

The Strouhal number is:

$$S = \sqrt{\frac{\dot{f}^2 + \dot{g}^2}{(f_x f + f_y g)^2 + (g_x f + g_y g)^2}}$$

A very special case of the above is the general Poisseuille flow [u = f(y, z; t), v = 0, w = 0] which is a rotational, non-Beltrami flow, with zero convective and onedimensional local acceleration. The unsteadiness is infinite. For the "slow motion" (Stokes) unsteady problems, and for impact problems where the convective acceleration is neglected, the measure becomes infinite. For a pseudo plane flow of the second kind, the motion is identical in planes parallel to the (x,y) plane and it is defined by u = f(x, y; t), v = g(x, y; t), w = h(x, y; t). The Strouhal number is again generally not zero and finite.

Rotational symmetric flows show the same behavior with respect to the measure as the pseudo plane flows. A pseudo rotational symmetric flow of the first kind is given by:  $v_r = f(r, \theta, z; t), v_{\theta} = 0$  and  $v_z = h(r, \theta, z; t)$ . The pseudo rotational symmetric flow of the second kind  $[v_r = f(r, z; t), v_{\theta} = g(r, z; t)]$  and  $v_z = h(r, z; t)]$  shows perfect analogy with the corresponding planar case and the measure is, in both cases, generally not zero and finite. For the notation, see Figure 9.



Figure 9 - Coordinate System for Rotational Symmetric Flows

#### LINEARIZED FLOW

If a small perturbation velocity  $\bar{v}$  is superimposed on a constant flow velocity  $\bar{U}$ , the actual velocity becomes

$$\overline{v}' = \overline{v} + \overline{U}, \quad \text{or} \quad v'_i = v_i + U_i$$

where  $|\overline{v}|^2 \ll |\overline{U}|^2$ .

The actual acceleration is

$$a'_{i} = \frac{\partial v'_{i}}{\partial t} + v'_{i,j} v'_{j}$$

The linearized acceleration becomes

$$a_i = \dot{v}_i + v_{i,j} U_j$$

The Strouhal number is

$$S = \frac{\sqrt{\dot{v}_i \, \dot{v}_i}}{\sqrt{v_{j, k} \, v_{j, l} \, U_k \, U_l}}$$

If the constant flow is along the x-axis, then

$$U_1 = U;$$
  $U_2 = U_3 = 0$ 

and

$$S = \frac{\sqrt{\dot{v}_i \, \dot{v}_i}}{U \sqrt{v_{j,1} \, v_{j,1}}}$$

where

$$v_{j,\,1} = \frac{\partial v_j}{\partial x}$$

This measure of unsteadiness is generally time and space dependent.

If we further assume a special perturbation where

$$u = v = 0 \qquad \qquad w = A x e^{i \omega t}$$

the measure of unsteadiness becomes

$$S = \frac{x \omega}{U}$$

Substituting a characteristic length (L) for x, the conventional Strouhal number or dimensionless frequency ratio is obtained,

$$S = \frac{L \omega}{U}$$

The following facts should be emphasized:

- 1. The acceleration was linearized,
- 2. the perturbation was not of the d'Alembert type, and
- 3. the measure of unsteadiness depends on x.

#### INERTIA METHOD FOR SHIP RESISTANCE MEASUREMENT

The inertia method of measuring ship resistance can be connected with the analysis of the following differential equation:

$$(1+k_x) m \frac{du}{dt} = -c \frac{\rho}{2} u^2 F$$

where m is the mass of the ship and u is the instantaneous velocity of the body in the direction of motion.

The actual experiment suggested by W. Froude consists of a deceleration test during which the velocity decreases from  $u_0 = u(0)$  to u = 0. The above equation assumes that the drag coefficient c is independent of the acceleration, i.e., the instantaneous velocity alone gives the drag which is independent of higher order derivatives of the velocity and so c = c (u). This is, of course, not the case since from dropping experiments Lunnon<sup>15,16</sup> has shown that the drag computed from the instantaneous velocity is less than the actual drag in accelerated motion. There is also little reason to believe that the added mass is independent of the acceleration in a viscous fluid.<sup>17-19</sup> Assuming furthermore  $c(u) = c_0 = constant$ , the solution is:

20

where

$$B = \frac{\frac{\rho}{2} F c_0}{(1+k_r) m}$$

A comparison with the discussion on pages 12-13 shows that  $u_0$  corresponds to A, and B to -C. Since B is essentially positive, C < 0, which means that the velocity is decreasing. Assuming that a d'Alembert flow can represent the flow occurring in connection with the inertia method, the conclusion is made that the assumptions made in the inertia method are equivalent to assuming a time-independent unsteadiness.

The purpose of the above analysis was to investigate the inertia method from the point of view of the measure of unsteadiness and not to discuss the method generally. There are, of course, several very important details in connection with the method which were not mentioned at all.

#### RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE RESEARCH

A thorough study of accelerationless flows is strongly indicated, since for these flows the unsteadiness is constant, i.e., space as well as time independent. The investigation should be extended to two- and three-dimensional velocity distributions. Further examples should be given for three-dimensional incompressible unsteady flows. At the present time it seems that an analysis of compressible fluids is in some respects simpler than that of incompressible fluids. The theoretical investigation presented in this paper should be connected more strongly with the motion of submerged bodies. In this respect, a rather encouraging fact is that the generalized Strouhal number reduces to the conventional dimensionless frequency parameter if certain linearizations are performed.

#### CONCLUSIONS

The unsteadiness of a nonuniform flow can be measured by comparing the local and convective parts of the acceleration. The measure is generally space and time dependent. Separable flows with hyperbolic decay of the velocity show constant unsteadiness in time, increasing unsteadiness for exponential decay of the velocity, and oscillatory unsteadiness for sinusoidal velocity variation. Linearized flow shows time-independent unsteadiness for harmonic oscillation and gives the conventional dimensionless frequency ratio as the measure of unsteadiness.

Three examples are discussed in detail: an unsteady jet, the decay of vorticity, and the inertia method of measuring ship resistance. An unsteady jet striking a plate has maximum unsteadiness on the plate and minimum unsteadiness on the axis of the jet. The two types of vorticity dissipation studied are fundamentally different. A circular eddy is represented by a nonseparable velocity distribution and a set of "rectangular" vortices by a d'Alembert flow. The velocity dies out and the unsteadiness increases with time in both cases. The assumptions made in the inertia method of measuring ship resistance are equivalent with assuming time-independent unsteadiness. The conventional dimensionless frequency ratio is obtained by linearizing the generalized measure of unsteadiness.

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This report presents the results of research on one phase of unsteady flow problems. When first outlined, this research program met several objections. In this most critical state, the author received great encouragement from Dr. L. Landweber, whose pure scientific attitude made this research possible.

The author gratefully acknowledges Mr. P. Eisenberg's invitation to prepare this report. Miss R.M. Roberts and Miss R. Morton proofread the manuscript and the galley and helped in clarifying several doubtful questions. The author is also grateful to Mr. W.E. Cummins for his careful review of the report.

The idea to establish a measure of unsteadiness was suggested by Dr. Truesdell's unpublished paper entitled "Two Measures of Vorticity."

#### REFERENCES

1. Theodorsen, T., "General Theory of Aerodynamic Instability and the Mechanism of Flutter," NACA Report 496, 1949.

2. Laitone, E.V., "Rigid Body Dynamics of Aircraft Including Non-Stationary Aerodynamics," Douglas Aircraft Company Report SM-13820, 1951.

3. Szebehely, V.G., "Measures of Unsteadiness," presented before the Virginia Academy of Science and abstracted in the Virginia Journal of Science, 1952, Vol. 3, No. 4.

4. Neményi, P.F., "Recent Developments in Inverse and Semi-Inverse Methods in the Mechanics of Continua," Advances in Applied Mechanics, 1951, Vol. 2, pp. 123-151.

5. Merlin, E., "Mouvement d'un fluide parfait dépourvu d'accélération," Annales Scientifiques de l'École Normal Supérieure, 3rd Series, 1938, Vol. 55, pp. 223-255.

6. Hopf, E., "The Partial Differential Equation  $u_t + uu_x = \mu u_{xx}$ ," Comm. Pure and Applied Mathematics, 1950, Vol. 3, No. 3, pp. 201-230.

7. Duhem, P., "Recherches sur l'hydrodynamique," Annales de la faculté des sciences de l'université de Toulouse, 1901, Vol. 3, pp. 315-431.

8. Szebehely, V.G., "Hydrodynamics of Slamming of Ships," TMB Report 823, 1952.

9. Kampé de Fériet, J., "Sur quelques cas d'integration des équations du mouvement plan d'un fluide visqueux incompressible," Annales de la Soc. Sc. de Bruxelles, 1930, Vol. 50A, pp. 77-80. 10. Taylor, G.I., "On the Dissipation of Eddies," ACA Report and Memo. 598, 1918.

11. Taylor, G.I., "On the Decay of Vortices in a Viscous Fluid," Phil. Mag., 6th Series, 1923, Vol. 46, pp. 671-674.

12. Trkal, V., "Poznamka k hydrodynamice vazkych tekutin," Vasopis pro Pestovani Matematiky a Fisiky (Praha), 1919, Vol. 48, pp. 302-311.

13. Hamel, G., "Spiralförmige Bewegungen zäher Flüssigkeiten," Jahresb. der Deutschen Math. Ver., 1919, Vol. 25, pp. 34-60.

14. Berker, R.A., "Sur quelques cas d'integration des équation du mouvement d'un fluide visqueux incompressible," Paris-Lille, 1936.

15. Lunnon, R.G., "The Resistance of Air to Falling Spheres," Phil. Mag., 6th Series, 1924, Vol. 47, pp. 173-182.

16. Lunnon, R.G., "Fluid Resistance to Moving Spheres," Proc. Roy. Soc. London, 1926, Vol. 110, pp. 302-326.

17. Cowley, W.L. and Levy, H., "On the Effect of Acceleration on the Resistance of a Body," ACA Report and Memo. 612, 1918.

18. Frazer, R.A and Simmons, L.F.G., "The Dependence of the Resistance of Bodies upon Acceleration," ACA Report and Memo. 590, 1919.

19. Schmidt, F.S., "Zur beschleunigten Bewegung kugelförmiger Körper in wiederstehenden Mitteln," Annalen der Physik, 1920, Vol. 61, pp. 633-664.

## INITIAL DISTRIBUTION

10	Chief, Bureau of Ships, Technical Library (Code 327)
5	Chief, Bureau of Ordnance, Underwater Ordnance (Re6a) 1 Dr. A. Miller
3	Chief, Bureau of Aeronautics, Aerodynamics and Hydrodynamics Branch (DE-3)
3	Chief of Naval Research
4	Commander, U.S. Naval Ordnance Laboratory, Mechanics Division, White Oak, Silver Spring 19, Md.
4	Commander, Naval Ordnance Test Station, Inyokern, China Lake, Calif. 2 Underwater Ordnance Division, Pasadena, Calif.
1	Commander, Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, Portsmouth, N.H. Attn: Design Superintendent
1	Commanding Officer, Navy Underwater Sound Laboratory, Fort Trumbull, New London, Conn.
1	Commanding Officer, U.S. Naval Underwater Ordnance Station, Design Section, Newport, R.I.
1	Hydrographer, U.S. Navy Hydrographic Office, Washington 25, D.C.
3	Director, National Advisory Committee for Aeronautics, 1724 F St., N.W., Washington, D.C.
3	Director, National Bureau of Standards, Washington 25, D.C.
2	Newport News Shipbuilding and Dry Dock Co., Newport News, Va. 1 Senior Naval Architect 1 Supervisor, Hydraulics Laboratory
3	Director, Ordnance Research Laboratory, Pennsylvania State College, State College, Pa. 1 Prof. K.J. DeJuhasz
1	Director, Experimental Naval Tank, Department of Naval Architecture and Marine Engineering, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.
1	Director, Applied Physics Laboratory, Johns Hopkins University, 8621 Georgia Avenue, Silver Spring, Md.
1	Director, Institute for Fluid Dynamics and Applied Mathematics, University of Maryland, College Park, Md.
1	Head, Department of Naval Architecture and Marine Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge 39, Mass.
1	Administrator, Webb Institute of Naval Architecture, Crescent Beach Road, Glen Cove, Long Island, N.Y.

2	Hydrodynamic Laboratory, Attn: Executive Committee, California Institute of Technology, Pasadena 4, Calif.
2	Dr. L.G. Straub, Director, St. Anthony Falls Hydraulic Laboratory, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis 14, Minn.
1	Dr. Hunter Rouse, Director, Iowa Institute of Hydraulic Research, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa
2.	Dr. V.L. Streeter, Illinois Institute of Technology, 3300 Federal St., Chicago 16, Ill.
1	Dr. C.C. Lin, Department of Mathematics, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge 39, Mass.
1	Dr. A.T. Ippen, Director, Hydrodynamics Leboratory, Department of Civil and Sanitary Engineering, Massachusetts Institute c <sup>e</sup> Technology, Cambridge 39, Mass.
1	Dr. C.A. Wright, Department of Hydraulic and Sanitary Engineering, Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn, 99 Livingston St., Brooklyn 2, N.Y.
1	Dr. W. Pell, Division of Applied Mathematics, Brown University, Providence, R.I.
2	Dr. J.V. Wehausen, Editor, Mathematical Reviews, Providence, R.I.
1	Dr. G.F. Wislicenus, Mechanical Engineering Department, Johns Hopkins University, Baltimore 18, Md.
1	Dr. Th. von Kármán, 1051 South Marengo St., Pasadena, Calif.
1	Dr. M.S. Plesset, California Institute of Technology, Pasadena 4, Calif.
1	Dr.N.J. Hoff, Brooklyn Polytechnic Institute, Brooklyn 2, N.Y.
1	Dr. A. Kantrowitz, Cornell University, Ithaca, N.Y.
1	Dr. D. Gunther, Head, Department of Mechanics, Cornell University, Ithaca, N.Y.
1	Dr. K.S.M. Davidson, Stevens Institute of Technology, Hoboken, N.J.
1	Dr. C.A. Truesdell, Department of Mathematics, University of Indiana, Bloomington, Ind.
1	Dr. T. Theodorsen, Air Materiel Command, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Dayton, Ohio
1	Dr. F.L. Ericksen, Naval Research Laboratory, Washington 25, D.C.
1	Prof. W.S. Hamilton, Technical Institute, Northwestern University, Evanston, Ill.
1	Prof. G. Birkhoff, Harvard University, Cambridge 38, Mass.
1	Prof. K.E. Schoenherr, School of Engineering, Notre Dame University, Notre Dame, Ind.
0	

- 1 Prof. R.A. Dodge, Engineering Mechanics Department, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.
- 1 Prof. R.G. Folsom, Department of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley 4, Calif.
- 1 Prof. E.V. Laitone, University of California, Berkeley 4, Calif.
- 1 Prof. J.W. Miles, University of California, Los Angeles, Calif.
- 1 Prof. N.W. Conner, North Carolina State College, Raleigh, N.C.
- 1 Prof. B.V. Korvin-Kroukovsky, Stevens Institute of Technology, Hoboken, N.J.
- 1 Prof. C.W. Harris, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Washington, Seattle 5, Wash.
- 1 Prof. J.L. Hooper, Alden Hydraulic Laboratory, Worcester Polytechnic Institute, Worcester, Mass.
- 1 Prof. A.D. Hay, Princeton University, Princeton, N.J.
- 1 Prof. R.C. Binder, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Purdue University Lafayette, Ind.
- 1 Dean E.B. Norris, Virginia Polytechnic Institute, Blacksburg, Va.
- 1 Mr. J.B. Parkinson, Langley Memorial Aeronautical Laboratory, Langley Field, Va.
- 1 Mr. N.A. Hall, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis 14, Minn.
- 1 Mr. Richard Skalak, Department of Civil Engineering, Columbia University, New York 27, N.Y.
- 1 Goodyear Aircraft Corporation, Akron, Ohio
- 1 Directeur, Bassin d'Essais des Carenes, 6 Boulevard Victor, Paris (15e), France
- 1 Directeur, Laboratoire Dauphinois d'Hydrauliques des Ateliers Neyrpic Avenue de Beauvert, Grenoble (Isère), France
- 1 Director, Swedish State Shipbuilding Experimental Tank, Göteborg 24, Sweden
- 1 Director, Aeronautical Research Institute of Sweden, Ranhammarsvagen 12, Ulsvunda, Sweden
- 1 Office, National d'Études et de Recherches Aéronautiques 3, rue Leon Bonnat, Paris XVI, France
- Superintendent, Ship Division, National Physical Laboraotry, Teddington, Middlesex, England
   Dr. G. Hughes
- 2 Director, British Shipbuilding Research Association, 5 Chesterfield Gardens, Curzon St., London, W.1, England
  - 1 Editor, Journal of the British Shipbuilding Research Association

1	Dr.L. Malavard, Office, National d'Études et de Recherches Aéronautiques, Chatillon, Paris, France
1	Dr. G.P. Weinblum, Ingenieur Schule, Berliner Tor 21, Hamburg, Germany
1	Dr. R. Timman, National Luchtvaartlaboratorium, Sloterwag 145, Amsterdam, The Netherlands
1	Prof. J.K. Lunde, Skipsmodelltanken, Tyholt, Trondheim, Norway
1	Prof. L. Troost, Superintendent, Netherlands Ship Model Basin, Haagsteeg 2, Wageningen, The Netherlands
1	Prof. J. Kampé de Fériet, Faculté des Sciences, Université de Lille, Lille (Nord), France
1	Prof. D.P. Riabouchinsky, Centre National de la Recherche Scientifique, 13 Quai d'Orsay, Paris VII, France
1	Prof. J.M. Burgers, Laboratorium Voor Aero-En Hydrodynamica, Nieuwe Laan 76, Delft, The Netherlands
1	Prof. J. Ackeret, Institut für Aerodynamik Der Eidgenössiche Technische Hochschule, Zürich, Switzerland
1	Prof. L. Rosenhead, University of Liverpool, Liverpool, England
1	Prof. Harold Jeffreys, St. John's College, Cambridge, England
1	Sir R.V. Southwell, 9 Lathburg Road, Oxford, England
1	Mr. W.P. Jones, National Physical Laboratory, Aerodynamics Division, London, England
1	Gen Ing. U. Pugliese, Presidente Istituto Nazionale per Studi ed Esperienze di Architettura Navale, via della Vasca Navale 89, Rome, Italy
1	Sr. M. Acevedo y Campoamor, Director, Canal de Experienceas Hidrodinamicas, El Pardo, Madrid, Spain
1	Dr. J. Dieudonné, Directeur, Institut de Recherches de la Construction Navale, 1 Boulevard Haussmann, Paris (9e), France
2	Australian Scientific Research Liaison Office, Washington, D.C.
1	Hydrodynamics Laboratory, National Research Council, Ottawa, Canada
9	British Joint Services Mission (Navy Staff), P.O. Box 165, Benjamin Franklin Station, Washington, D.C.

David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basir. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	<ol> <li>Flow</li> <li>Hydrodynamics         <ol> <li>Szebehely, Victor G.</li> <li>NS 715-084</li> </ol> </li> </ol>	David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084
David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084	David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness" ( $S \rightarrow \infty$ ). Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \rightarrow \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments. A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \rightarrow \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \rightarrow \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < \hat{s} < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basir. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084	David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084
David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics I. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084	David W. Taylor Model Basin. Rept. 833. GENERALIZATION OF THE DIMENSIONLESS FREQUENCY PARAMETER IN UNSTEADY FLOWS, by Victor G. Szebehely. Washington, November 1952. iii, 22 p. incl. figs., refs. UNCLASSIFIED This report presents some theoretical results in connection with the unsteady flow research program at the David Taylor Model Basin. The complex and relatively unknown field of time- dependent hydrodynamic phenomena is approached from a general point of view. Only a few special flows are discussed emphasiz- ing the diversity of unsteady flow problems. Since time effect occurs only in the acceleration term of the momentum (or Navier- Stokes) equation, an analysis of the two types of acceleration is presented in detail. A dimensionless ratio of the local and con- vective accelerations is introduced. It is shown that with the magnitude of this ratio, the unsteadiness of the flow can be	1. Flow 2. Hydrodynamics 1. Szebehely, Victor G. II. NS 715-084

r

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness" ( $S \rightarrow \infty$ ). Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \rightarrow \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments. A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness" ( $S \rightarrow \infty$ ). Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < \hat{S} < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.

described and characterized. Previously published results on hydrodynamic impact represent one limiting case for the above "measure of unsteadiness"  $(S \rightarrow \infty)$ . Steady (time-independent flows) are associated with zero value of this measure (S = 0).

A detailed report on flows with intermediate values  $(0 < S < \infty)$  is under preparation. It will be published in the near future in connection with recent oscillator experiments.

A short discussion of accelerationless flows is included.



